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BE | T REMEMBERED t hat on Mbnday,
Novenber 17, 2025, at 56 South First Street,
Washougal , Washington, at 6:40 p.m, the foll ow ng
| and- use consi stency hearing of the Washington State
Energy Facility Site Evaluation Council was held, to

W t:

LLLLL >>>>>>

CHAIR BECKETT: So I wll call this
| and-use consi stency hearing to order. Again, Kurt
Beckett, chair of the Energy Facility Site Eval uation
Council. And this hearing is required by
RCW 80. 50. 090(2) and the Washi ngton Adm nistrative
Code 463-26- 305.

During this hearing, we will have testinony
regardi ng the proposed project's consistency and
conpliance with | and-use plans and zoni ng ordi nances.
That is the only subject that will be all owed during
this hearing, given we've taken general coments
previ ously.

And this hearing is now very specifically in
order for the Council to create the record and nmake a
determ nati on on | and-use consistency and conpli ance

wi th | and-use plans and zoni ng ordi nances. Coments
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and other topics will be asked to be directed --
directing their comments online or with staff
separately.
So wwth that, I"'mgoing to ask Ms. Ganthamto
call the roll again as is required.
M5. GRANTHAM  Certainly, Chair
Beckett.
Depart ment of commerce.
M5. OSBORNE: Elizabeth Gsborne,
present.
M5. GRANTHAM  Depart nent of
Ecol ogy.
NELSON: Bl ake Nel son, present.
GRANTHAM  Departnent of Fish

5 2

and Wldlife.

MR. PAMPLIN. Nate Panplin,
present .

M5. GRANTHAM  Depart nent of
Nat ural Resour ces.

MR. RYAN. Maverick Ryan, present.

M5. GRANTHAM  Utilities and
Transportati on Comm ssi on.

MR. RYBARI K. Brian Rybarik,
present.

M5. GRANTHAM  Assi stant Attorney

253.627.6401 BA scheduling@byersanderson.com
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Ceneral Jon Thonpson.

MR THOMPSON: Present.

M5. GRANTHAM  Adm nistrative Law
Judge Courtney Beebe.

JUDGE BEEBE: | am present.

M5. GRANTHAM  The Council staff
that are present.

Soni a Bunpus.

M5. BUWPUS: Present.

M5. GRANTHAM  Am Haf keneyer .

M5. HAFKEMEYER  Present.

M5. GRANTHAM  Lance Caput o.

MR. CAPUTQO Present.

M5. GRANTHAM  Kar| Hol appa.

MR HOLAPPA: Present.

M5. GRANTHAM  Mari a Bel ki na.

MS. BELKI NA:  Present.

M5. GRANTHAM  And Lisa MLean.

MS. McLEAN: Present.

M5. GRANTHAM  And did we have
anyone for the counsel for the environnment show up
yet ?

Chair, there is a quorum
CHAI R BECKETT: Thank you.
Soon | will be asking Judge Beebe to actually
253.627.6401 B:AL.T.GAT.ON S scheduling@byersanderson.com
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take over this portion of the neeting. But if | may,
first, Judge, let nme note for the public who are
still here that both the full application can be
found on the EFSEC website under our "Projects"”
section as well as, as that process, you know,
proceeds, you can always | ook there for supportive
studies. | know there's a question of where that

m ght be accessed. That may not necessarily be true
t oday, but over the course of tinme, those are the
materials that are present on the EFSEC website and
transparent for the public's access.

So, with that, let ne turn this to Judge Beebe,
who, again, will be taking any testinony. 1It's ny
under st andi ng we may not have any this evening.

| should also note that we'll be conducting these
hearings, both Part A and Part B, both tonight as
wel | as tonmorrow night in Skamani a County and
followed by the third night in Klickitat County.

That is part of the underlying statute that EFSEC
operates in, that after an application is received,
wi thin 60 days we would start that process in the
comunities in which the project will be -- wll be
housed.

So apol ogi es for not nmeking that part of ny

earlier opening comment, but perhaps as a cl ose.

253.627.6401 BA scheduling@byersanderson.com
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So, with that, Judge Beebe, let ne turn this to
you. And we will see if we have any further conmments
to be presented on | and use. Judge Beebe.

JUDGE BEEBE: Thank you. Just a
brief introduction regarding the role of the Ofice
of Adm nistrative Hearings in your public neeting.

The Ofice of Adm nistrative Hearings is an
I ndependent agency. M role here today is to ensure
that there is a conplete record of public coment.

W will only be taking public conmment on how the site
Is or is not consistent or is or is not in conpliance
wi th applicable | and-use plans and zoni ng ordi nances.

Public comment is |imted to three m nutes per
person. W will not be allow ng the asking of
guestions or any information exchange. The purpose
of this portionis to allow comments. These comrents
may pronpt a need for answers. But the purpose of
this portion of the hearing is only to allow the
comments and to create the record.

Foll owi ng this | and-use consi stency hearing, |
shall draft an order, including findings of fact,
appropriate portions of relevant | aw and code,
proposed concl usions of |aw regardi ng whet her the
proposed site is consistent and in conpliance with

appl i cabl e | and-use plans and zoni ng ordi nances.
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For the record, the applicable law is
RCW 80. 50. 090, Subsection 2, and Washi ngt on
Adm ni strative Code Chapter 463-26. | shall provide
a draft order to the EFSEC assigned AAG and staff for
any revisions and review prior to them proposing
order to the Council with a recomrendati on.

So, with that, if there is a first person on the
list, I'Il defer to you, Ms. G antham regarding
calling the person to speak.

M5. GRANTHAM  Thank you.

| would like to direct that the applicant
actually has a presentation for the | and-use
consi stency hearing first.

CHAI R BECKETT:  Apol ogi es for
m ssing that piece, so...

JUDGE BEEBE: If the applicant
would like to begin with their presentation, and then
we can begin with public comrent.

M5. BASSETT: Al right. Hi,
everyone. |'m Malia Bassett. |'ma senior
environnental planner, and I'mon the CRT team And
|'"'mgoing to tal k about | and-use consistency in Cark
County.

Let's go ahead and go to the next slide.

So, Chris, do you want to give just a quick

253.627.6401 BA scheduling@byersanderson.com
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overview again, if folks weren't here?
MR. HOCKER  Yeabh.

This is basically a repeat of mny previous
presentation. But the project, of course, is about a
hundred m | es underwater and underground. It's -- 80
of that is in the river. The green line up at the
top. The land portions include about five mles in
the Portland area, about five mles in The Dalles
area, and about seven and a half mles to bypass the
Bonneville Dam And that's what the yellow |ines
are. Those are the buried underground portions.

M5. BASSETT: So as you can see in
the center there, the on-land portion starts
around -- cones out of the Colunbia R ver and goes on
| and in Stevenson and then goes west and then goes
back into the Colunbia River after the Bonneville
Dam

So -- next slide, please -- there actually isn't
any on -- next slide -- on-land portions in Cark
County, but I will be going through the in-water
portions that are in the Colunbia R ver adjacent to
C ark County.

So there are seven. W're referring to them as
segnents. That's because the center of the Col unbia

Ri ver is the border between Washi ngton State and

253.627.6401 BA scheduling@byersanderson.com
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Oregon State, and the |ine maneuvers in and out of
the state. So there's seven segnents of the line
that cone into Washington and then exit between the
boundaries of O ark County.

And that's about eight mles total. So going to
wal k through those so you can see where the |ine
enters Washington, exits, so those seven segnents.

Next slide pl ease.

So the yellow highlight is highlighting the line
which is represented with a -- with the red dashes.
You can see that around River Mle 177, the |line just
barely crosses over to Washington and then exits back
into Oregon. Sane thing you' re seeing as we go down
the river. 117? Oh. Yeah, | can barely see that.
Sorry. 117 river mle and then going east to River
Mle 121. So we have three segnents -- right? --
that we're | ooking at where the line enters and exits
Washi ngton State.

Next sli de.

Same thing here. There's a little carryover from
the previous slide at Rver Mle 121 and then
three -- well, two full segnents comng in and out of
Washi ngton State and then one back in Washi ngton
State at 124 and a half. And then -- next slide.

Then there's the continuation of the segnent in

253.627.6401 BA scheduling@byersanderson.com
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the last slide around 125 to al nbst 127. And then
you see the |ast segnent there between 127 and 129.
And just to reiterate, these are the conponents
on-land in Washington. dark County is not |isted
there, so there's actually no on-1land conponents.
There's only in-water. And like it was said
previously, we will be discussing the on-1and
conponents tonorrow and Wednesday. For now, that's
it for dark County.
Tim did you want to say anythi ng about
consi stency?

MR. McMAHAN:  Ti m McMahan here.
represent the applicant, and I'ma |awer wth Stoel
Rives law firmin Portland. And so this is going to
be a little bit boring, because we're in Cark
County, which is an area with no terrestrial inpacts
fromthe project.

So as you've heard this evening, the | and-use
consi stency hearing's purpose is to determ ne
whet her the project is -- these are very inportant
words out of the statute -- whether the project is
consistent and in conpliance with |Iocal |and-use
pl ans and zoning ordi nances. And EFSEC ultimately
makes that -- ultinmately makes that determ nation.

So the relevant inquiry for EFSEC s initial

253.627.6401 BA scheduling@byersanderson.com
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| and-use analysis is -- and | quote -- whether the
pertinent | and-use provisions prohibit the proposed
project site, in quotes, expressly or by operation
clearly, convincingly and unequivocally. So fairly
strong words that frane the di scussion here.

| f a proposed project can be permtted either
outright or conditionally, it is considered
consistent and in conpliance with |ocal |and-use
provi sions for purposes of RCW80.50.090, Sub 2.

So for tonight's hearing, thisis, in fact, a
very limted inquiry. W enphasize that the Cascade
Renewabl e Transm ssion Project proposed in dark
County is entirely underwater within Cark County.
Nei t her the County's zoning code nor the County's
conpr ehensi ve pl an i npose | and-use restrictions on or
In water uses in the river and on the river bottom
wi thin the Col unbia River.

We antici pate additional discussions in the
com ng days to address |ocations where the
transm ssion line is proposed in terrestrial
| ocations, but that is not being proposed tonight,
because this is entirely in the water.

So, sorry that that's kind of boring, but that's
what it is at dark County. W'Ill have a lot nore to

tal k about tonorrow in Skamani a County.

253.627.6401 BA scheduling@byersanderson.com
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So thank you for your tine.

CHAI R BECKETT: Thank you for the
presentation. It's hel pful.

Menbers of the Council, are there comments or
questions for our presenters?

Heari ng none.

Judge Beebe, | think I would then turn this to
you to seek any public comment at this tine. |
bel i eve there was one.

JUDGE BEEBE: Certainly. And since
| don't have the list, I'Il just rely on
Ms. Gantham if she could call their name and ask
themto come to the m crophone.

M5. GRANTHAM Certainly will do.

As of right now, we only have one speaker signed
up, and that is Nathan Baker.

MR. BAKER: Good evening, Chair
Beckett, nenbers of the Council. M nane is Nathan
Baker. |1'mthe senior staff attorney with Friends of
the Colunbia Gorge. And I'd like to talk about three
procedural issues tonight. You could consider them
obj ections if necessary.

The first is that the deadline for witten public
comrent is unclear at best. There's no deadline

stated on any of the materials for submtting witten

253.627.6401 BA scheduling@byersanderson.com
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public comment.

| did hear Chair Beckett say tonight that conment
wi |l be accepted throughout the process, but it isn't
cl ear whether that's for |and-use consistency. |If
you | ook at the hearing notice, it really discourages
witten public comment. It says, if you are unable
to attend the hearing, then submt coments in
writing.

And | know that during this session, this segnment
of this hearing, you' re not to be deliberating or
responding to ny points, but we would ask that
toni ght, before this hearing concludes, you keep the
record open until a date/tine and certain. And we
woul d suggest 30 days from Wednesday for that. Keep
the record open, and provide sone clarity about when
public comments can be submitted in witing.

The second issue is the fact that the applicant

has only submtted a draft application and the | egal

ram fications of that fact. It's very clearly a
draft application. |It's |abeled as a draft on Page
1, nore than 200 tinmes in the application. It's in
the footers denoted as a draft application. |It's

described as a draft on the EFSEC website. There's
even internal comments in the netadata in the

docunent fromthe | and-use planners and fromthe

253.627.6401 BA scheduling@byersanderson.com
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applicant's attorney that are -- it's clearly still a
draft with comments back and forth between them

And so what does that nean? W think that EFSEC
shoul d not have accepted this and started the process
and i nstead should have told the applicant, W'l]I
wait until you submt a final application to start
t he process.

But either way, there will have to be a final
application submtted. And there wll,
unfortunately, need to be another round of hearings
when that -- the final application is submtted.
That's under the statute. Whenever an application is
submtted, it kicks off the requirenent to hold the
heari ngs.

And, finally, I've heard no nention of Cark
County's appointee to the Council for this matter.
That's required by the statute. That's required --
every hearing where the site is considered, dark
County is to be appointing a nenber of the Council.
And we've heard no nention of that. So all the nore
reason for another hearing, another informational
heari ng and | and-use hearing, with the participation
of Cark County's appointee for the project.

Thank you very nuch

JUDGE BEEBE: Thank you.

253.627.6401 BA scheduling@byersanderson.com
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M5. GRANTHAM That is the only --

JUDGE BEEBE: And, Ms. G antham --

M5. GRANTHAM  -- speaker that --
apol ogies. That is the only speaker that | have
signed up for tonight.

JUDGE BEEBE: Ckay. |'m | ooking
online just very quickly to see if there is any --
| ooks |i ke we have Bryan Mattson has raised his hand.

So, M. Mattson, this is Judge Beebe. | wll

give you three mnutes as well, which will begin now
And, again, just, again, this is just public coment
on the | and-use conpli ance.

MR. MATTSON: Thank you. Bryan
Mattson. | won't need the full three mnutes, so --
but | wanted to rem nd the gentleman from Stoel R ves
that Cark County still has a shoreline managenent

programthat's part of their zoning code. And

anything in the water will be considered in dark
County's jurisdiction if it's under the water. It
wi Il be considered in the aquatic environnment type.

And the gentleman from Ecol ogy probably has sone

I nsight into our shoreline nmanagenent program

because | believe that Ecology has to approve it.
So that's all | had. Just wanted to nake sure

that that was i ncl uded.
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JUDGE BEEBE: Thank you,
M. Mattson.
| don't see any other online hands up.
Any other on -- individuals who are attending
online, if you want to use the hand-rai se feature.
Ckay. | don't see any individuals online. And
no others have signed up. So | wll defer to you,
Chai rperson Beckett, if you want to inquire further
of additional public testinony.
CHAI R BECKETT: Thank you, Judge
Beebe. Let ne do one final call on | and-use

guestions fromthose in attendance here in person

t oni ght .
And seeing none, Judge. |I'mgoing to close the
neeting -- or the hearing here in just a nonent, but

| et nme doubl e-check if there's any other cl osing

busi ness that you had.

JUDGE BEEBE: | will defer to you
and to your |legal counsel regarding the request to
keep the record open. | would sinply note that as it
woul d depend -- it would inpact the tineline for ne

drafting an order to propose to the Council.
CHAI R BECKETT: Appreciate that
clarification.

| don't think we'll be in the position to do that

253.627.6401 BA scheduling@byersanderson.com
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here live in the hearing tonight, but certainly
appreciate the input and the questions and certainly
on the public comment period. [|'msure we wll have
that answered this week.

So, with that, et ne thank everyone who has
taken their tinme to participate this evening, whether
in listen-only node or nore active participation. W
certainly appreciate you hel ping us begin this
pr ocess.

And I et nme check with our Council nenbers to see
I f there's any closing questions or comrents.

And | believe Director Bunpus may have a couple
itens to add in, which is welcone. Director Bunpus.

M5. BUWPUS. Thank you, Chair
Becket t.

| just wanted to note for the record just to
clarify that, on the EFSEC website, for our hearing,
specifically the informational hearing and the
| and-use hearing this evening for Cark County, the
comrent period shows it starts at 5:30 p.m, which
was the timng that we started this neeting, and ends
at 11:59 p. m

So our online conmment system -- even though we
wi Il be concluding this hearing tonight, the comment
systemw || be available online until 11:59 tonight.

253.627.6401 BA scheduling@byersanderson.com
O LITIGATION SERVICES



© 00 N o o B~ W N P

N D N D DNMNMNDN P P PP PR R R R
o A W N P O © 00 N O O b W N B+, O

EFSEC CRT informational meetings

Land Use Hearing,

- November 17, 2025 Page 21

addi ti onal

CHAI R BECKETT: Thank you for the

clarification.

And, with that, we are then adjourned at

7:01 p.m Thank you very nuch.
(Heari ng adj ourned at
7:01 p.m)
253.627.6401 B:ALmeAnon  VICES scheduling@byersanderson.com



	Transcript
	Cover
	Caption
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 15
	Page 16
	Page 17
	Page 18
	Page 19
	Page 20
	Page 21
	Page 22

	Word Index
	Index: 1..calling
	1 (1)
	117 (2)
	11:59 (2)
	121 (2)
	124 (1)
	125 (1)
	127 (2)
	129 (1)
	17 (1)
	177 (1)
	2 (2)
	200 (1)
	2025 (1)
	30 (1)
	463-26 (1)
	463-26-305 (1)
	56 (1)
	5:30 (1)
	60 (1)
	6:40 (1)
	7:01 (2)
	80 (1)
	80.50.090 (2)
	80.50.090(2) (1)
	AAG (1)
	accepted (2)
	access (1)
	accessed (1)
	active (1)
	add (1)
	additional (3)
	address (1)
	adjacent (1)
	adjourned (2)
	Administrative (5)
	agency (1)
	ahead (1)
	allowed (1)
	allowing (1)
	Ami (1)
	analysis (1)
	answers (1)
	anticipate (1)
	apologies (3)
	applicable (3)
	applicant (5)
	applicant's (1)
	application (10)
	appointee (2)
	appointing (1)
	approve (1)
	aquatic (1)
	area (3)
	assigned (1)
	Assistant (1)
	attend (1)
	attendance (1)
	attending (1)
	attorney (3)
	back (4)
	Baker (3)
	barely (2)
	basically (1)
	Bassett (3)
	Beckett (13)
	Beebe (17)
	begin (4)
	Belkina (2)
	bit (1)
	Blake (1)
	Bonneville (2)
	border (1)
	boring (2)
	bottom (1)
	boundaries (1)
	Brian (1)
	Bryan (2)
	Bumpus (5)
	buried (1)
	business (1)
	bypass (1)
	call (4)
	calling (1)

	Index: Caputo..final
	Caputo (2)
	carryover (1)
	Cascade (1)
	center (2)
	chair (13)
	Chairperson (1)
	Chapter (1)
	check (1)
	Chris (1)
	clarification (2)
	clarify (1)
	clarity (1)
	Clark (16)
	clear (1)
	close (2)
	closing (2)
	code (5)
	Columbia (6)
	comment (15)
	comments (13)
	commerce (1)
	Commission (1)
	communities (1)
	complete (1)
	compliance (7)
	components (3)
	comprehensive (1)
	concludes (1)
	concluding (1)
	conclusions (1)
	conditionally (1)
	conducting (1)
	considered (4)
	consistency (10)
	consistent (4)
	continuation (1)
	convincingly (1)
	Council (11)
	counsel (2)
	County (16)
	County's (5)
	couple (1)
	Courtney (1)
	create (2)
	crosses (1)
	CRT (1)
	Dalles (1)
	Dam (2)
	dashes (1)
	date/time (1)
	days (3)
	deadline (2)
	defer (3)
	deliberating (1)
	denoted (1)
	Department (4)
	depend (1)
	determination (2)
	determine (1)
	direct (1)
	directed (1)
	directing (1)
	Director (2)
	discourages (1)
	discussing (1)
	discussion (1)
	discussions (1)
	document (1)
	double-check (1)
	draft (8)
	drafting (1)
	earlier (1)
	east (1)
	Ecology (3)
	EFSEC (8)
	Efsec's (1)
	Elizabeth (1)
	emphasize (1)
	ends (1)
	Energy (2)
	ensure (1)
	enters (2)
	environment (2)
	environmental (1)
	Evaluation (2)
	evening (5)
	exchange (1)
	exit (1)
	exits (3)
	expressly (1)
	Facility (2)
	fact (4)
	fairly (1)
	feature (1)
	final (4)

	Index: finally..management
	finally (1)
	findings (1)
	firm (1)
	Fish (1)
	folks (1)
	footers (1)
	found (1)
	frame (1)
	Friends (1)
	full (3)
	general (2)
	gentleman (2)
	give (2)
	Good (1)
	Gorge (1)
	Grantham (22)
	green (1)
	Hafkemeyer (2)
	half (2)
	hand (1)
	hand-raise (1)
	hands (1)
	hear (1)
	heard (3)
	hearing (26)
	hearing's (1)
	hearings (5)
	held (1)
	helpful (1)
	helping (1)
	highlight (1)
	highlighting (1)
	HOCKER (1)
	Holappa (2)
	hold (1)
	housed (1)
	hundred (1)
	impact (1)
	impacts (1)
	important (1)
	impose (1)
	in-water (2)
	include (1)
	included (1)
	including (1)
	independent (1)
	individuals (2)
	information (1)
	informational (2)
	initial (1)
	input (1)
	inquire (1)
	inquiry (2)
	insight (1)
	internal (1)
	introduction (1)
	issue (1)
	issues (1)
	items (1)
	Jon (1)
	Judge (19)
	jurisdiction (1)
	Karl (1)
	kicks (1)
	kind (1)
	Klickitat (1)
	Kurt (1)
	labeled (1)
	Lance (1)
	land (3)
	land-use (22)
	law (5)
	lawyer (1)
	legal (2)
	limited (2)
	lines (1)
	Lisa (1)
	list (2)
	listed (1)
	listen-only (1)
	live (1)
	local (2)
	locations (2)
	lot (1)
	make (2)
	makes (2)
	making (1)
	Malia (1)
	management (2)

	Index: maneuvers..raised
	maneuvers (1)
	Maria (1)
	materials (2)
	matter (1)
	Mattson (5)
	Maverick (1)
	Mclean (2)
	Mcmahan (2)
	meeting (4)
	member (1)
	members (3)
	mention (2)
	metadata (1)
	microphone (1)
	mile (4)
	miles (5)
	minutes (3)
	missing (1)
	mode (1)
	moment (1)
	Monday (1)
	Nate (1)
	Nathan (2)
	Natural (1)
	necessarily (1)
	Nelson (2)
	night (2)
	note (4)
	notice (1)
	November (1)
	objections (1)
	Office (2)
	on-land (5)
	online (7)
	open (3)
	opening (1)
	operates (1)
	operation (1)
	order (6)
	ordinances (5)
	Oregon (2)
	Osborne (2)
	outright (1)
	overview (1)
	p.m. (5)
	Pamplin (2)
	part (5)
	participate (1)
	participation (2)
	period (2)
	permitted (1)
	person (4)
	pertinent (1)
	piece (1)
	plan (1)
	planner (1)
	planners (1)
	plans (5)
	points (1)
	portion (4)
	portions (5)
	Portland (2)
	position (1)
	present (15)
	presentation (4)
	presented (1)
	presenters (1)
	previous (2)
	previously (2)
	prior (1)
	procedural (1)
	proceeds (1)
	process (6)
	program (2)
	prohibit (1)
	project (9)
	project's (1)
	Projects (1)
	prompt (1)
	propose (1)
	proposed (8)
	proposing (1)
	provide (2)
	provisions (2)
	public (14)
	public's (1)
	purpose (3)
	purposes (1)
	question (1)
	questions (5)
	quick (1)
	quickly (1)
	quorum (1)
	quote (1)
	quotes (1)
	raised (1)

	Index: ramifications..unclear
	ramifications (1)
	RCW (3)
	reason (1)
	received (1)
	recommendation (1)
	record (8)
	red (1)
	referring (1)
	reiterate (1)
	relevant (2)
	rely (1)
	REMEMBERED (1)
	remind (1)
	Renewable (1)
	repeat (1)
	represent (1)
	represented (1)
	request (1)
	required (4)
	requirement (1)
	Resources (1)
	responding (1)
	restrictions (1)
	review (1)
	revisions (1)
	river (13)
	Rives (2)
	role (2)
	roll (1)
	round (1)
	Ryan (2)
	Rybarik (2)
	section (1)
	seek (1)
	segment (3)
	segments (5)
	senior (2)
	separately (1)
	session (1)
	shoreline (2)
	show (1)
	shows (1)
	signed (3)
	simply (1)
	site (6)
	Skamania (2)
	slide (8)
	Sonia (1)
	South (1)
	speak (1)
	speaker (3)
	specifically (2)
	staff (4)
	start (2)
	started (2)
	starts (2)
	state (7)
	stated (1)
	statute (4)
	Stevenson (1)
	Stoel (2)
	Street (1)
	strong (1)
	studies (1)
	subject (1)
	submit (2)
	submitted (5)
	submitting (1)
	Subsection (1)
	suggest (1)
	supportive (1)
	system (2)
	taking (2)
	talk (3)
	team (1)
	terrestrial (2)
	testimony (3)
	thing (2)
	Thompson (2)
	Tim (2)
	time (4)
	timeline (1)
	times (1)
	timing (1)
	today (2)
	told (1)
	tomorrow (3)
	tonight (10)
	tonight's (1)
	top (1)
	topics (1)
	total (1)
	transmission (2)
	transparent (1)
	Transportation (1)
	true (1)
	turn (3)
	type (1)
	ultimately (2)
	unable (1)
	unclear (1)

	Index: underground..zoning
	underground (2)
	underlying (1)
	understanding (1)
	underwater (2)
	unequivocally (1)
	Utilities (1)
	wait (1)
	walk (1)
	wanted (3)
	Washington (12)
	Washougal (1)
	water (4)
	website (4)
	Wednesday (2)
	week (1)
	west (1)
	Wildlife (1)
	wit (1)
	words (2)
	writing (2)
	written (3)
	yellow (2)
	zoning (7)


	Transcript Formats
	Amicus
	MDB
	LiveNote
	ASCII/TXT



0001

______________________________________________________________

                      WASHINGTON STATE

           ENERGY FACILITY SITE EVALUATION COUNCIL

                CASCADE TRANSMISSION PROJECT

                LAND-USE CONSISTENCY HEARING

______________________________________________________________

                       November 17, 2025

                    Washougal, Washington

    Reporter:  John M. S. Botelho, CCR, RPR

0002

 1                        APPEARANCES

 2

     STATE AGENCY MEMBERS:

 3

          Kurt Beckett, Chair

 4

          Elizabeth Osborne, Department of Commerce

 5

          Blake Nelson, Department of Ecology

 6

          Nate Pamplin, Dept. of Fish and Wildlife

 7

          Maverick Ryan, Department of Natural Resources

 8

          Brian Rybarik,

 9        Utilities & Transportation Commission

10

11   ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL:

12        Jon Thompson

13

14   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:

15        Courtney Beebe

16

17   COUNCIL STAFF:

18        Sonia Bumpus               Alex Shiley

19        Ami Hafkemeyer             Karl Holappa

20        Joan Owens                 Maria Belkina

21        Andrea Grantham            Lisa McLean

22        Lance Caputo

23

24

25

0003

 1                  APPEARANCES (Continuing)

 2

     IN ATTENDANCE:

 3

          For Cascade Renewable Transmission, LLC:

 4

              Chris Hocker

 5

              Malia Bassett

 6

              Tim McMahan

 7            Stoel Rives, LLP

 8

 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

0004

 1                         HEARING INDEX

 2     EVENT:                                       PAGE NO.

 3   Roll call                                           6

 4   Remarks by Judge Beebe                              9

 5   Presentation by applicant                          10

 6   Public comments                                    15

 7   Council member comments                            20

 8   Adjournment                                        21

 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

0005

 1                     BE IT REMEMBERED that on Monday,

 2   November 17, 2025, at 56 South First Street,

 3   Washougal, Washington, at 6:40 p.m., the following

 4   land-use consistency hearing of the Washington State

 5   Energy Facility Site Evaluation Council was held, to

 6   wit:

 7

 8                       <<<<<< >>>>>>

 9

10                     CHAIR BECKETT:  So I will call this

11   land-use consistency hearing to order.  Again, Kurt

12   Beckett, chair of the Energy Facility Site Evaluation

13   Council.  And this hearing is required by

14   RCW 80.50.090(2) and the Washington Administrative

15   Code 463-26-305.

16       During this hearing, we will have testimony

17   regarding the proposed project's consistency and

18   compliance with land-use plans and zoning ordinances.

19   That is the only subject that will be allowed during

20   this hearing, given we've taken general comments

21   previously.

22       And this hearing is now very specifically in

23   order for the Council to create the record and make a

24   determination on land-use consistency and compliance

25   with land-use plans and zoning ordinances.  Comments
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 1   and other topics will be asked to be directed --

 2   directing their comments online or with staff

 3   separately.

 4       So with that, I'm going to ask Ms. Grantham to

 5   call the roll again as is required.

 6                     MS. GRANTHAM:  Certainly, Chair

 7   Beckett.

 8       Department of commerce.

 9                     MS. OSBORNE:  Elizabeth Osborne,

10   present.

11                     MS. GRANTHAM:  Department of

12   Ecology.

13                     MR. NELSON:  Blake Nelson, present.

14                     MS. GRANTHAM:  Department of Fish

15   and Wildlife.

16                     MR. PAMPLIN:  Nate Pamplin,

17   present.

18                     MS. GRANTHAM:  Department of

19   Natural Resources.

20                     MR. RYAN:  Maverick Ryan, present.

21                     MS. GRANTHAM:  Utilities and

22   Transportation Commission.

23                     MR. RYBARIK:  Brian Rybarik,

24   present.

25                     MS. GRANTHAM:  Assistant Attorney
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 1   General Jon Thompson.

 2                     MR. THOMPSON:  Present.

 3                     MS. GRANTHAM:  Administrative Law

 4   Judge Courtney Beebe.

 5                     JUDGE BEEBE:  I am present.

 6                     MS. GRANTHAM:  The Council staff

 7   that are present.

 8       Sonia Bumpus.

 9                     MS. BUMPUS:  Present.

10                     MS. GRANTHAM:  Ami Hafkemeyer.

11                     MS. HAFKEMEYER:  Present.

12                     MS. GRANTHAM:  Lance Caputo.

13                     MR. CAPUTO:  Present.

14                     MS. GRANTHAM:  Karl Holappa.

15                     MR. HOLAPPA:  Present.

16                     MS. GRANTHAM:  Maria Belkina.

17                     MS. BELKINA:  Present.

18                     MS. GRANTHAM:  And Lisa McLean.

19                     MS. McLEAN:  Present.

20                     MS. GRANTHAM:  And did we have

21   anyone for the counsel for the environment show up

22   yet?

23       Chair, there is a quorum.

24                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.

25       Soon I will be asking Judge Beebe to actually
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 1   take over this portion of the meeting.  But if I may,

 2   first, Judge, let me note for the public who are

 3   still here that both the full application can be

 4   found on the EFSEC website under our "Projects"

 5   section as well as, as that process, you know,

 6   proceeds, you can always look there for supportive

 7   studies.  I know there's a question of where that

 8   might be accessed.  That may not necessarily be true

 9   today, but over the course of time, those are the

10   materials that are present on the EFSEC website and

11   transparent for the public's access.

12       So, with that, let me turn this to Judge Beebe,

13   who, again, will be taking any testimony.  It's my

14   understanding we may not have any this evening.

15       I should also note that we'll be conducting these

16   hearings, both Part A and Part B, both tonight as

17   well as tomorrow night in Skamania County and

18   followed by the third night in Klickitat County.

19   That is part of the underlying statute that EFSEC

20   operates in, that after an application is received,

21   within 60 days we would start that process in the

22   communities in which the project will be -- will be

23   housed.

24       So apologies for not making that part of my

25   earlier opening comment, but perhaps as a close.
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 1       So, with that, Judge Beebe, let me turn this to

 2   you.  And we will see if we have any further comments

 3   to be presented on land use.  Judge Beebe.

 4                     JUDGE BEEBE:  Thank you.  Just a

 5   brief introduction regarding the role of the Office

 6   of Administrative Hearings in your public meeting.

 7       The Office of Administrative Hearings is an

 8   independent agency.  My role here today is to ensure

 9   that there is a complete record of public comment.

10   We will only be taking public comment on how the site

11   is or is not consistent or is or is not in compliance

12   with applicable land-use plans and zoning ordinances.

13       Public comment is limited to three minutes per

14   person.  We will not be allowing the asking of

15   questions or any information exchange.  The purpose

16   of this portion is to allow comments.  These comments

17   may prompt a need for answers.  But the purpose of

18   this portion of the hearing is only to allow the

19   comments and to create the record.

20       Following this land-use consistency hearing, I

21   shall draft an order, including findings of fact,

22   appropriate portions of relevant law and code,

23   proposed conclusions of law regarding whether the

24   proposed site is consistent and in compliance with

25   applicable land-use plans and zoning ordinances.
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 1       For the record, the applicable law is

 2   RCW 80.50.090, Subsection 2, and Washington

 3   Administrative Code Chapter 463-26.  I shall provide

 4   a draft order to the EFSEC assigned AAG and staff for

 5   any revisions and review prior to them proposing

 6   order to the Council with a recommendation.

 7       So, with that, if there is a first person on the

 8   list, I'll defer to you, Ms. Grantham, regarding

 9   calling the person to speak.

10                     MS. GRANTHAM:  Thank you.

11       I would like to direct that the applicant

12   actually has a presentation for the land-use

13   consistency hearing first.

14                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Apologies for

15   missing that piece, so...

16                     JUDGE BEEBE:  If the applicant

17   would like to begin with their presentation, and then

18   we can begin with public comment.

19                     MS. BASSETT:  All right.  Hi,

20   everyone.  I'm Malia Bassett.  I'm a senior

21   environmental planner, and I'm on the CRT team.  And

22   I'm going to talk about land-use consistency in Clark

23   County.

24       Let's go ahead and go to the next slide.

25       So, Chris, do you want to give just a quick
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 1   overview again, if folks weren't here?

 2                     MR. HOCKER:  Yeah.

 3       This is basically a repeat of my previous

 4   presentation.  But the project, of course, is about a

 5   hundred miles underwater and underground.  It's -- 80

 6   of that is in the river.  The green line up at the

 7   top.  The land portions include about five miles in

 8   the Portland area, about five miles in The Dalles

 9   area, and about seven and a half miles to bypass the

10   Bonneville Dam.  And that's what the yellow lines

11   are.  Those are the buried underground portions.

12                     MS. BASSETT:  So as you can see in

13   the center there, the on-land portion starts

14   around -- comes out of the Columbia River and goes on

15   land in Stevenson and then goes west and then goes

16   back into the Columbia River after the Bonneville

17   Dam.

18       So -- next slide, please -- there actually isn't

19   any on -- next slide -- on-land portions in Clark

20   County, but I will be going through the in-water

21   portions that are in the Columbia River adjacent to

22   Clark County.

23       So there are seven.  We're referring to them as

24   segments.  That's because the center of the Columbia

25   River is the border between Washington State and
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 1   Oregon State, and the line maneuvers in and out of

 2   the state.  So there's seven segments of the line

 3   that come into Washington and then exit between the

 4   boundaries of Clark County.

 5       And that's about eight miles total.  So going to

 6   walk through those so you can see where the line

 7   enters Washington, exits, so those seven segments.

 8       Next slide please.

 9       So the yellow highlight is highlighting the line

10   which is represented with a -- with the red dashes.

11   You can see that around River Mile 177, the line just

12   barely crosses over to Washington and then exits back

13   into Oregon.  Same thing you're seeing as we go down

14   the river.  117?  Oh.  Yeah, I can barely see that.

15   Sorry.  117 river mile and then going east to River

16   Mile 121.  So we have three segments -- right? --

17   that we're looking at where the line enters and exits

18   Washington State.

19       Next slide.

20       Same thing here.  There's a little carryover from

21   the previous slide at River Mile 121 and then

22   three -- well, two full segments coming in and out of

23   Washington State and then one back in Washington

24   State at 124 and a half.  And then -- next slide.

25       Then there's the continuation of the segment in
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 1   the last slide around 125 to almost 127.  And then

 2   you see the last segment there between 127 and 129.

 3       And just to reiterate, these are the components

 4   on-land in Washington.  Clark County is not listed

 5   there, so there's actually no on-land components.

 6   There's only in-water.  And like it was said

 7   previously, we will be discussing the on-land

 8   components tomorrow and Wednesday.  For now, that's

 9   it for Clark County.

10       Tim, did you want to say anything about

11   consistency?

12                     MR. McMAHAN:  Tim McMahan here.  I

13   represent the applicant, and I'm a lawyer with Stoel

14   Rives law firm in Portland.  And so this is going to

15   be a little bit boring, because we're in Clark

16   County, which is an area with no terrestrial impacts

17   from the project.

18       So as you've heard this evening, the land-use

19   consistency hearing's purpose is to determine

20   whether the project is -- these are very important

21   words out of the statute -- whether the project is

22   consistent and in compliance with local land-use

23   plans and zoning ordinances.  And EFSEC ultimately

24   makes that -- ultimately makes that determination.

25       So the relevant inquiry for EFSEC's initial
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 1   land-use analysis is -- and I quote -- whether the

 2   pertinent land-use provisions prohibit the proposed

 3   project site, in quotes, expressly or by operation

 4   clearly, convincingly and unequivocally.  So fairly

 5   strong words that frame the discussion here.

 6       If a proposed project can be permitted either

 7   outright or conditionally, it is considered

 8   consistent and in compliance with local land-use

 9   provisions for purposes of RCW 80.50.090, Sub 2.

10       So for tonight's hearing, this is, in fact, a

11   very limited inquiry.  We emphasize that the Cascade

12   Renewable Transmission Project proposed in Clark

13   County is entirely underwater within Clark County.

14   Neither the County's zoning code nor the County's

15   comprehensive plan impose land-use restrictions on or

16   in water uses in the river and on the river bottom

17   within the Columbia River.

18       We anticipate additional discussions in the

19   coming days to address locations where the

20   transmission line is proposed in terrestrial

21   locations, but that is not being proposed tonight,

22   because this is entirely in the water.

23       So, sorry that that's kind of boring, but that's

24   what it is at Clark County.  We'll have a lot more to

25   talk about tomorrow in Skamania County.
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 1       So thank you for your time.

 2                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you for the

 3   presentation.  It's helpful.

 4       Members of the Council, are there comments or

 5   questions for our presenters?

 6       Hearing none.

 7       Judge Beebe, I think I would then turn this to

 8   you to seek any public comment at this time.  I

 9   believe there was one.

10                     JUDGE BEEBE:  Certainly.  And since

11   I don't have the list, I'll just rely on

12   Ms. Grantham, if she could call their name and ask

13   them to come to the microphone.

14                     MS. GRANTHAM:  Certainly will do.

15       As of right now, we only have one speaker signed

16   up, and that is Nathan Baker.

17                     MR. BAKER:  Good evening, Chair

18   Beckett, members of the Council.  My name is Nathan

19   Baker.  I'm the senior staff attorney with Friends of

20   the Columbia Gorge.  And I'd like to talk about three

21   procedural issues tonight.  You could consider them

22   objections if necessary.

23       The first is that the deadline for written public

24   comment is unclear at best.  There's no deadline

25   stated on any of the materials for submitting written
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 1   public comment.

 2       I did hear Chair Beckett say tonight that comment

 3   will be accepted throughout the process, but it isn't

 4   clear whether that's for land-use consistency.  If

 5   you look at the hearing notice, it really discourages

 6   written public comment.  It says, if you are unable

 7   to attend the hearing, then submit comments in

 8   writing.

 9       And I know that during this session, this segment

10   of this hearing, you're not to be deliberating or

11   responding to my points, but we would ask that

12   tonight, before this hearing concludes, you keep the

13   record open until a date/time and certain.  And we

14   would suggest 30 days from Wednesday for that.  Keep

15   the record open, and provide some clarity about when

16   public comments can be submitted in writing.

17       The second issue is the fact that the applicant

18   has only submitted a draft application and the legal

19   ramifications of that fact.  It's very clearly a

20   draft application.  It's labeled as a draft on Page

21   1, more than 200 times in the application.  It's in

22   the footers denoted as a draft application.  It's

23   described as a draft on the EFSEC website.  There's

24   even internal comments in the metadata in the

25   document from the land-use planners and from the
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 1   applicant's attorney that are -- it's clearly still a

 2   draft with comments back and forth between them.

 3       And so what does that mean?  We think that EFSEC

 4   should not have accepted this and started the process

 5   and instead should have told the applicant, We'll

 6   wait until you submit a final application to start

 7   the process.

 8       But either way, there will have to be a final

 9   application submitted.  And there will,

10   unfortunately, need to be another round of hearings

11   when that -- the final application is submitted.

12   That's under the statute.  Whenever an application is

13   submitted, it kicks off the requirement to hold the

14   hearings.

15       And, finally, I've heard no mention of Clark

16   County's appointee to the Council for this matter.

17   That's required by the statute.  That's required --

18   every hearing where the site is considered, Clark

19   County is to be appointing a member of the Council.

20   And we've heard no mention of that.  So all the more

21   reason for another hearing, another informational

22   hearing and land-use hearing, with the participation

23   of Clark County's appointee for the project.

24       Thank you very much.

25                     JUDGE BEEBE:  Thank you.
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 1                     MS. GRANTHAM:  That is the only --

 2                     JUDGE BEEBE:  And, Ms. Grantham --

 3                     MS. GRANTHAM:  -- speaker that --

 4   apologies.  That is the only speaker that I have

 5   signed up for tonight.

 6                     JUDGE BEEBE:  Okay.  I'm looking

 7   online just very quickly to see if there is any --

 8   looks like we have Bryan Mattson has raised his hand.

 9       So, Mr. Mattson, this is Judge Beebe.  I will

10   give you three minutes as well, which will begin now.

11   And, again, just, again, this is just public comment

12   on the land-use compliance.

13                     MR. MATTSON:  Thank you.  Bryan

14   Mattson.  I won't need the full three minutes, so --

15   but I wanted to remind the gentleman from Stoel Rives

16   that Clark County still has a shoreline management

17   program that's part of their zoning code.  And

18   anything in the water will be considered in Clark

19   County's jurisdiction if it's under the water.  It

20   will be considered in the aquatic environment type.

21   And the gentleman from Ecology probably has some

22   insight into our shoreline management program,

23   because I believe that Ecology has to approve it.

24       So that's all I had.  Just wanted to make sure

25   that that was included.
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 1                     JUDGE BEEBE:  Thank you,

 2   Mr. Mattson.

 3       I don't see any other online hands up.

 4       Any other on -- individuals who are attending

 5   online, if you want to use the hand-raise feature.

 6       Okay.  I don't see any individuals online.  And

 7   no others have signed up.  So I will defer to you,

 8   Chairperson Beckett, if you want to inquire further

 9   of additional public testimony.

10                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you, Judge

11   Beebe.  Let me do one final call on land-use

12   questions from those in attendance here in person

13   tonight.

14       And seeing none, Judge.  I'm going to close the

15   meeting -- or the hearing here in just a moment, but

16   let me double-check if there's any other closing

17   business that you had.

18                     JUDGE BEEBE:  I will defer to you

19   and to your legal counsel regarding the request to

20   keep the record open.  I would simply note that as it

21   would depend -- it would impact the timeline for me

22   drafting an order to propose to the Council.

23                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Appreciate that

24   clarification.

25       I don't think we'll be in the position to do that
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 1   here live in the hearing tonight, but certainly

 2   appreciate the input and the questions and certainly

 3   on the public comment period.  I'm sure we will have

 4   that answered this week.

 5       So, with that, let me thank everyone who has

 6   taken their time to participate this evening, whether

 7   in listen-only mode or more active participation.  We

 8   certainly appreciate you helping us begin this

 9   process.

10       And let me check with our Council members to see

11   if there's any closing questions or comments.

12       And I believe Director Bumpus may have a couple

13   items to add in, which is welcome.  Director Bumpus.

14                     MS. BUMPUS:  Thank you, Chair

15   Beckett.

16       I just wanted to note for the record just to

17   clarify that, on the EFSEC website, for our hearing,

18   specifically the informational hearing and the

19   land-use hearing this evening for Clark County, the

20   comment period shows it starts at 5:30 p.m., which

21   was the timing that we started this meeting, and ends

22   at 11:59 p.m.

23       So our online comment system -- even though we

24   will be concluding this hearing tonight, the comment

25   system will be available online until 11:59 tonight.
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 1                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you for the

 2   additional clarification.

 3       And, with that, we are then adjourned at

 4   7:01 p.m.  Thank you very much.

 5                            (Hearing adjourned at

 6                             7:01 p.m.)
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 1   STATE OF WASHINGTON )     I, John M. S. Botelho, CCR, RPR,

                         ) ss  a certified court reporter

 2   County of Pierce    )     in the State of Washington, do

                               hereby certify:

 3

 4

          That the foregoing land-use consistency hearing of the

 5   Washington State Energy Facility Site Evaluation Council was

     conducted in my presence and adjourned on November 17, 2025,

 6   and thereafter was transcribed under my direction; that the

     transcript is a full, true and complete transcript of the

 7   said hearing, transcribed to the best of my ability;

 8        That I am not a relative, employee, attorney or counsel

     of any party to this matter or relative or employee of any

 9   such attorney or counsel and that I am not financially

     interested in the said matter or the outcome thereof;

10

          IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand

11   this 2nd day of December, 2025.
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16                             Certified Court Reporter No. 2976

                               (Certification expires 5/26/2026.)

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

                                                               22




		Index		MediaGroup		SourceCase		FirstName		LastName		Date		StartPage		EndPage		LinesPerPage		Complete

		1		LandUseHearing111725.163647_100		EFSEC CRT informational meetings 		 		Land Use Hearing		11/17/2025		1		22		25		true



		Index		Timecode		TimeStamp		Temp		PageNum		LineNum		NoDisplay		Text		Native		Redact

		1						PG		1		0		false		page 1				false

		2						LN		1		0		false		                 ______________________________________________________________				false

		3						LN		1		0		false		                                       WASHINGTON STATE				false

		4						LN		1		0		false		                            ENERGY FACILITY SITE EVALUATION COUNCIL				false

		5						LN		1		0		false		                                 CASCADE TRANSMISSION PROJECT				false

		6						LN		1		0		false		                                 LAND-USE CONSISTENCY HEARING				false

		7						LN		1		0		false		                 ______________________________________________________________				false

		8						LN		1		0		false		                                        November 17, 2025				false

		9						LN		1		0		false		                                     Washougal, Washington				false

		10						LN		1		0		false		                     Reporter:  John M. S. Botelho, CCR, RPR				false

		11						PG		2		0		false		page 2				false

		12						LN		2		1		false		           1                           APPEARANCES				false

		13						LN		2		2		false		           2				false

		14						LN		2		2		false		                  STATE AGENCY MEMBERS:				false

		15						LN		2		3		false		           3				false

		16						LN		2		3		false		                       Kurt Beckett, Chair				false

		17						LN		2		4		false		           4				false

		18						LN		2		4		false		                       Elizabeth Osborne, Department of Commerce				false

		19						LN		2		5		false		           5				false

		20						LN		2		5		false		                       Blake Nelson, Department of Ecology				false

		21						LN		2		6		false		           6				false

		22						LN		2		6		false		                       Nate Pamplin, Dept. of Fish and Wildlife				false

		23						LN		2		7		false		           7				false

		24						LN		2		7		false		                       Maverick Ryan, Department of Natural Resources				false

		25						LN		2		8		false		           8				false

		26						LN		2		8		false		                       Brian Rybarik,				false

		27						LN		2		9		false		           9           Utilities & Transportation Commission				false

		28						LN		2		10		false		          10				false

		29						LN		2		11		false		          11      ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL:				false

		30						LN		2		12		false		          12           Jon Thompson				false

		31						LN		2		13		false		          13				false

		32						LN		2		14		false		          14      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:				false

		33						LN		2		15		false		          15           Courtney Beebe				false

		34						LN		2		16		false		          16				false

		35						LN		2		17		false		          17      COUNCIL STAFF:				false

		36						LN		2		18		false		          18           Sonia Bumpus               Alex Shiley				false

		37						LN		2		19		false		          19           Ami Hafkemeyer             Karl Holappa				false

		38						LN		2		20		false		          20           Joan Owens                 Maria Belkina				false

		39						LN		2		21		false		          21           Andrea Grantham            Lisa McLean				false

		40						LN		2		22		false		          22           Lance Caputo				false

		41						LN		2		23		false		          23				false

		42						LN		2		24		false		          24				false

		43						LN		2		25		false		          25				false

		44						PG		3		0		false		page 3				false

		45						LN		3		1		false		           1                     APPEARANCES (Continuing)				false

		46						LN		3		2		false		           2				false

		47						LN		3		2		false		                  IN ATTENDANCE:				false

		48						LN		3		3		false		           3				false

		49						LN		3		3		false		                       For Cascade Renewable Transmission, LLC:				false

		50						LN		3		4		false		           4				false

		51						LN		3		4		false		                           Chris Hocker				false

		52						LN		3		5		false		           5				false

		53						LN		3		5		false		                           Malia Bassett				false

		54						LN		3		6		false		           6				false

		55						LN		3		6		false		                           Tim McMahan				false

		56						LN		3		7		false		           7               Stoel Rives, LLP				false

		57						LN		3		8		false		           8				false

		58						LN		3		9		false		           9				false

		59						LN		3		10		false		          10				false

		60						LN		3		11		false		          11				false

		61						LN		3		12		false		          12				false

		62						LN		3		13		false		          13				false

		63						LN		3		14		false		          14				false

		64						LN		3		15		false		          15				false

		65						LN		3		16		false		          16				false

		66						LN		3		17		false		          17				false

		67						LN		3		18		false		          18				false

		68						LN		3		19		false		          19				false

		69						LN		3		20		false		          20				false

		70						LN		3		21		false		          21				false

		71						LN		3		22		false		          22				false

		72						LN		3		23		false		          23				false

		73						LN		3		24		false		          24				false

		74						LN		3		25		false		          25				false

		75						PG		4		0		false		page 4				false

		76						LN		4		1		false		           1                          HEARING INDEX				false

		77						LN		4		2		false		           2      EVENT:                                       PAGE NO.				false

		78						LN		4		3		false		           3    Roll call                                           6				false

		79						LN		4		4		false		           4    Remarks by Judge Beebe                              9				false

		80						LN		4		5		false		           5    Presentation by applicant                          10				false

		81						LN		4		6		false		           6    Public comments                                    15				false

		82						LN		4		7		false		           7    Council member comments                            20				false

		83						LN		4		8		false		           8    Adjournment                                        21				false

		84						LN		4		9		false		           9				false

		85						LN		4		10		false		          10				false

		86						LN		4		11		false		          11				false

		87						LN		4		12		false		          12				false

		88						LN		4		13		false		          13				false

		89						LN		4		14		false		          14				false

		90						LN		4		15		false		          15				false

		91						LN		4		16		false		          16				false

		92						LN		4		17		false		          17				false

		93						LN		4		18		false		          18				false

		94						LN		4		19		false		          19				false

		95						LN		4		20		false		          20				false

		96						LN		4		21		false		          21				false

		97						LN		4		22		false		          22				false

		98						LN		4		23		false		          23				false

		99						LN		4		24		false		          24				false

		100						LN		4		25		false		          25				false

		101						PG		5		0		false		page 5				false

		102						LN		5		1		false		           1                        BE IT REMEMBERED that on Monday,				false

		103						LN		5		2		false		           2      November 17, 2025, at 56 South First Street,				false

		104						LN		5		3		false		           3      Washougal, Washington, at 6:40 p.m., the following				false

		105						LN		5		4		false		           4      land-use consistency hearing of the Washington State				false

		106						LN		5		5		false		           5      Energy Facility Site Evaluation Council was held, to				false

		107						LN		5		6		false		           6      wit:				false

		108						LN		5		7		false		           7				false

		109						LN		5		8		false		           8                          <<<<<< >>>>>>				false

		110						LN		5		9		false		           9				false

		111						LN		5		10		false		          10                        CHAIR BECKETT:  So I will call this				false

		112						LN		5		11		false		          11      land-use consistency hearing to order.  Again, Kurt				false

		113						LN		5		12		false		          12      Beckett, chair of the Energy Facility Site Evaluation				false

		114						LN		5		13		false		          13      Council.  And this hearing is required by				false

		115						LN		5		14		false		          14      RCW 80.50.090(2) and the Washington Administrative				false

		116						LN		5		15		false		          15      Code 463-26-305.				false

		117						LN		5		16		false		          16          During this hearing, we will have testimony				false

		118						LN		5		17		false		          17      regarding the proposed project's consistency and				false

		119						LN		5		18		false		          18      compliance with land-use plans and zoning ordinances.				false

		120						LN		5		19		false		          19      That is the only subject that will be allowed during				false

		121						LN		5		20		false		          20      this hearing, given we've taken general comments				false

		122						LN		5		21		false		          21      previously.				false

		123						LN		5		22		false		          22          And this hearing is now very specifically in				false

		124						LN		5		23		false		          23      order for the Council to create the record and make a				false

		125						LN		5		24		false		          24      determination on land-use consistency and compliance				false

		126						LN		5		25		false		          25      with land-use plans and zoning ordinances.  Comments				false

		127						PG		6		0		false		page 6				false

		128						LN		6		1		false		           1      and other topics will be asked to be directed --				false

		129						LN		6		2		false		           2      directing their comments online or with staff				false

		130						LN		6		3		false		           3      separately.				false

		131						LN		6		4		false		           4          So with that, I'm going to ask Ms. Grantham to				false

		132						LN		6		5		false		           5      call the roll again as is required.				false

		133						LN		6		6		false		           6                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Certainly, Chair				false

		134						LN		6		7		false		           7      Beckett.				false

		135						LN		6		8		false		           8          Department of commerce.				false

		136						LN		6		9		false		           9                        MS. OSBORNE:  Elizabeth Osborne,				false

		137						LN		6		10		false		          10      present.				false

		138						LN		6		11		false		          11                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Department of				false

		139						LN		6		12		false		          12      Ecology.				false

		140						LN		6		13		false		          13                        MR. NELSON:  Blake Nelson, present.				false

		141						LN		6		14		false		          14                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Department of Fish				false

		142						LN		6		15		false		          15      and Wildlife.				false

		143						LN		6		16		false		          16                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Nate Pamplin,				false

		144						LN		6		17		false		          17      present.				false

		145						LN		6		18		false		          18                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Department of				false

		146						LN		6		19		false		          19      Natural Resources.				false

		147						LN		6		20		false		          20                        MR. RYAN:  Maverick Ryan, present.				false

		148						LN		6		21		false		          21                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Utilities and				false

		149						LN		6		22		false		          22      Transportation Commission.				false

		150						LN		6		23		false		          23                        MR. RYBARIK:  Brian Rybarik,				false

		151						LN		6		24		false		          24      present.				false

		152						LN		6		25		false		          25                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Assistant Attorney				false

		153						PG		7		0		false		page 7				false

		154						LN		7		1		false		           1      General Jon Thompson.				false

		155						LN		7		2		false		           2                        MR. THOMPSON:  Present.				false

		156						LN		7		3		false		           3                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Administrative Law				false

		157						LN		7		4		false		           4      Judge Courtney Beebe.				false

		158						LN		7		5		false		           5                        JUDGE BEEBE:  I am present.				false

		159						LN		7		6		false		           6                        MS. GRANTHAM:  The Council staff				false

		160						LN		7		7		false		           7      that are present.				false

		161						LN		7		8		false		           8          Sonia Bumpus.				false

		162						LN		7		9		false		           9                        MS. BUMPUS:  Present.				false

		163						LN		7		10		false		          10                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Ami Hafkemeyer.				false

		164						LN		7		11		false		          11                        MS. HAFKEMEYER:  Present.				false

		165						LN		7		12		false		          12                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Lance Caputo.				false

		166						LN		7		13		false		          13                        MR. CAPUTO:  Present.				false

		167						LN		7		14		false		          14                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Karl Holappa.				false

		168						LN		7		15		false		          15                        MR. HOLAPPA:  Present.				false

		169						LN		7		16		false		          16                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Maria Belkina.				false

		170						LN		7		17		false		          17                        MS. BELKINA:  Present.				false

		171						LN		7		18		false		          18                        MS. GRANTHAM:  And Lisa McLean.				false

		172						LN		7		19		false		          19                        MS. McLEAN:  Present.				false

		173						LN		7		20		false		          20                        MS. GRANTHAM:  And did we have				false

		174						LN		7		21		false		          21      anyone for the counsel for the environment show up				false

		175						LN		7		22		false		          22      yet?				false

		176						LN		7		23		false		          23          Chair, there is a quorum.				false

		177						LN		7		24		false		          24                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.				false

		178						LN		7		25		false		          25          Soon I will be asking Judge Beebe to actually				false

		179						PG		8		0		false		page 8				false

		180						LN		8		1		false		           1      take over this portion of the meeting.  But if I may,				false

		181						LN		8		2		false		           2      first, Judge, let me note for the public who are				false

		182						LN		8		3		false		           3      still here that both the full application can be				false

		183						LN		8		4		false		           4      found on the EFSEC website under our "Projects"				false

		184						LN		8		5		false		           5      section as well as, as that process, you know,				false

		185						LN		8		6		false		           6      proceeds, you can always look there for supportive				false

		186						LN		8		7		false		           7      studies.  I know there's a question of where that				false

		187						LN		8		8		false		           8      might be accessed.  That may not necessarily be true				false

		188						LN		8		9		false		           9      today, but over the course of time, those are the				false

		189						LN		8		10		false		          10      materials that are present on the EFSEC website and				false

		190						LN		8		11		false		          11      transparent for the public's access.				false

		191						LN		8		12		false		          12          So, with that, let me turn this to Judge Beebe,				false

		192						LN		8		13		false		          13      who, again, will be taking any testimony.  It's my				false

		193						LN		8		14		false		          14      understanding we may not have any this evening.				false

		194						LN		8		15		false		          15          I should also note that we'll be conducting these				false

		195						LN		8		16		false		          16      hearings, both Part A and Part B, both tonight as				false

		196						LN		8		17		false		          17      well as tomorrow night in Skamania County and				false

		197						LN		8		18		false		          18      followed by the third night in Klickitat County.				false

		198						LN		8		19		false		          19      That is part of the underlying statute that EFSEC				false

		199						LN		8		20		false		          20      operates in, that after an application is received,				false

		200						LN		8		21		false		          21      within 60 days we would start that process in the				false

		201						LN		8		22		false		          22      communities in which the project will be -- will be				false

		202						LN		8		23		false		          23      housed.				false

		203						LN		8		24		false		          24          So apologies for not making that part of my				false

		204						LN		8		25		false		          25      earlier opening comment, but perhaps as a close.				false

		205						PG		9		0		false		page 9				false

		206						LN		9		1		false		           1          So, with that, Judge Beebe, let me turn this to				false

		207						LN		9		2		false		           2      you.  And we will see if we have any further comments				false

		208						LN		9		3		false		           3      to be presented on land use.  Judge Beebe.				false

		209						LN		9		4		false		           4                        JUDGE BEEBE:  Thank you.  Just a				false

		210						LN		9		5		false		           5      brief introduction regarding the role of the Office				false

		211						LN		9		6		false		           6      of Administrative Hearings in your public meeting.				false

		212						LN		9		7		false		           7          The Office of Administrative Hearings is an				false

		213						LN		9		8		false		           8      independent agency.  My role here today is to ensure				false

		214						LN		9		9		false		           9      that there is a complete record of public comment.				false

		215						LN		9		10		false		          10      We will only be taking public comment on how the site				false

		216						LN		9		11		false		          11      is or is not consistent or is or is not in compliance				false

		217						LN		9		12		false		          12      with applicable land-use plans and zoning ordinances.				false

		218						LN		9		13		false		          13          Public comment is limited to three minutes per				false

		219						LN		9		14		false		          14      person.  We will not be allowing the asking of				false

		220						LN		9		15		false		          15      questions or any information exchange.  The purpose				false

		221						LN		9		16		false		          16      of this portion is to allow comments.  These comments				false

		222						LN		9		17		false		          17      may prompt a need for answers.  But the purpose of				false

		223						LN		9		18		false		          18      this portion of the hearing is only to allow the				false

		224						LN		9		19		false		          19      comments and to create the record.				false

		225						LN		9		20		false		          20          Following this land-use consistency hearing, I				false

		226						LN		9		21		false		          21      shall draft an order, including findings of fact,				false

		227						LN		9		22		false		          22      appropriate portions of relevant law and code,				false

		228						LN		9		23		false		          23      proposed conclusions of law regarding whether the				false

		229						LN		9		24		false		          24      proposed site is consistent and in compliance with				false

		230						LN		9		25		false		          25      applicable land-use plans and zoning ordinances.				false

		231						PG		10		0		false		page 10				false

		232						LN		10		1		false		           1          For the record, the applicable law is				false

		233						LN		10		2		false		           2      RCW 80.50.090, Subsection 2, and Washington				false

		234						LN		10		3		false		           3      Administrative Code Chapter 463-26.  I shall provide				false

		235						LN		10		4		false		           4      a draft order to the EFSEC assigned AAG and staff for				false

		236						LN		10		5		false		           5      any revisions and review prior to them proposing				false

		237						LN		10		6		false		           6      order to the Council with a recommendation.				false

		238						LN		10		7		false		           7          So, with that, if there is a first person on the				false

		239						LN		10		8		false		           8      list, I'll defer to you, Ms. Grantham, regarding				false

		240						LN		10		9		false		           9      calling the person to speak.				false

		241						LN		10		10		false		          10                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Thank you.				false

		242						LN		10		11		false		          11          I would like to direct that the applicant				false

		243						LN		10		12		false		          12      actually has a presentation for the land-use				false

		244						LN		10		13		false		          13      consistency hearing first.				false

		245						LN		10		14		false		          14                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Apologies for				false

		246						LN		10		15		false		          15      missing that piece, so...				false

		247						LN		10		16		false		          16                        JUDGE BEEBE:  If the applicant				false

		248						LN		10		17		false		          17      would like to begin with their presentation, and then				false

		249						LN		10		18		false		          18      we can begin with public comment.				false

		250						LN		10		19		false		          19                        MS. BASSETT:  All right.  Hi,				false

		251						LN		10		20		false		          20      everyone.  I'm Malia Bassett.  I'm a senior				false

		252						LN		10		21		false		          21      environmental planner, and I'm on the CRT team.  And				false

		253						LN		10		22		false		          22      I'm going to talk about land-use consistency in Clark				false

		254						LN		10		23		false		          23      County.				false

		255						LN		10		24		false		          24          Let's go ahead and go to the next slide.				false

		256						LN		10		25		false		          25          So, Chris, do you want to give just a quick				false

		257						PG		11		0		false		page 11				false

		258						LN		11		1		false		           1      overview again, if folks weren't here?				false

		259						LN		11		2		false		           2                        MR. HOCKER:  Yeah.				false

		260						LN		11		3		false		           3          This is basically a repeat of my previous				false

		261						LN		11		4		false		           4      presentation.  But the project, of course, is about a				false

		262						LN		11		5		false		           5      hundred miles underwater and underground.  It's -- 80				false

		263						LN		11		6		false		           6      of that is in the river.  The green line up at the				false

		264						LN		11		7		false		           7      top.  The land portions include about five miles in				false

		265						LN		11		8		false		           8      the Portland area, about five miles in The Dalles				false

		266						LN		11		9		false		           9      area, and about seven and a half miles to bypass the				false

		267						LN		11		10		false		          10      Bonneville Dam.  And that's what the yellow lines				false

		268						LN		11		11		false		          11      are.  Those are the buried underground portions.				false

		269						LN		11		12		false		          12                        MS. BASSETT:  So as you can see in				false

		270						LN		11		13		false		          13      the center there, the on-land portion starts				false

		271						LN		11		14		false		          14      around -- comes out of the Columbia River and goes on				false

		272						LN		11		15		false		          15      land in Stevenson and then goes west and then goes				false

		273						LN		11		16		false		          16      back into the Columbia River after the Bonneville				false

		274						LN		11		17		false		          17      Dam.				false

		275						LN		11		18		false		          18          So -- next slide, please -- there actually isn't				false

		276						LN		11		19		false		          19      any on -- next slide -- on-land portions in Clark				false

		277						LN		11		20		false		          20      County, but I will be going through the in-water				false

		278						LN		11		21		false		          21      portions that are in the Columbia River adjacent to				false

		279						LN		11		22		false		          22      Clark County.				false

		280						LN		11		23		false		          23          So there are seven.  We're referring to them as				false

		281						LN		11		24		false		          24      segments.  That's because the center of the Columbia				false

		282						LN		11		25		false		          25      River is the border between Washington State and				false

		283						PG		12		0		false		page 12				false

		284						LN		12		1		false		           1      Oregon State, and the line maneuvers in and out of				false

		285						LN		12		2		false		           2      the state.  So there's seven segments of the line				false

		286						LN		12		3		false		           3      that come into Washington and then exit between the				false

		287						LN		12		4		false		           4      boundaries of Clark County.				false

		288						LN		12		5		false		           5          And that's about eight miles total.  So going to				false

		289						LN		12		6		false		           6      walk through those so you can see where the line				false

		290						LN		12		7		false		           7      enters Washington, exits, so those seven segments.				false

		291						LN		12		8		false		           8          Next slide please.				false

		292						LN		12		9		false		           9          So the yellow highlight is highlighting the line				false

		293						LN		12		10		false		          10      which is represented with a -- with the red dashes.				false

		294						LN		12		11		false		          11      You can see that around River Mile 177, the line just				false

		295						LN		12		12		false		          12      barely crosses over to Washington and then exits back				false

		296						LN		12		13		false		          13      into Oregon.  Same thing you're seeing as we go down				false

		297						LN		12		14		false		          14      the river.  117?  Oh.  Yeah, I can barely see that.				false

		298						LN		12		15		false		          15      Sorry.  117 river mile and then going east to River				false

		299						LN		12		16		false		          16      Mile 121.  So we have three segments -- right? --				false

		300						LN		12		17		false		          17      that we're looking at where the line enters and exits				false

		301						LN		12		18		false		          18      Washington State.				false

		302						LN		12		19		false		          19          Next slide.				false

		303						LN		12		20		false		          20          Same thing here.  There's a little carryover from				false

		304						LN		12		21		false		          21      the previous slide at River Mile 121 and then				false

		305						LN		12		22		false		          22      three -- well, two full segments coming in and out of				false

		306						LN		12		23		false		          23      Washington State and then one back in Washington				false

		307						LN		12		24		false		          24      State at 124 and a half.  And then -- next slide.				false

		308						LN		12		25		false		          25          Then there's the continuation of the segment in				false

		309						PG		13		0		false		page 13				false

		310						LN		13		1		false		           1      the last slide around 125 to almost 127.  And then				false

		311						LN		13		2		false		           2      you see the last segment there between 127 and 129.				false

		312						LN		13		3		false		           3          And just to reiterate, these are the components				false

		313						LN		13		4		false		           4      on-land in Washington.  Clark County is not listed				false

		314						LN		13		5		false		           5      there, so there's actually no on-land components.				false

		315						LN		13		6		false		           6      There's only in-water.  And like it was said				false

		316						LN		13		7		false		           7      previously, we will be discussing the on-land				false

		317						LN		13		8		false		           8      components tomorrow and Wednesday.  For now, that's				false

		318						LN		13		9		false		           9      it for Clark County.				false

		319						LN		13		10		false		          10          Tim, did you want to say anything about				false

		320						LN		13		11		false		          11      consistency?				false

		321						LN		13		12		false		          12                        MR. McMAHAN:  Tim McMahan here.  I				false

		322						LN		13		13		false		          13      represent the applicant, and I'm a lawyer with Stoel				false

		323						LN		13		14		false		          14      Rives law firm in Portland.  And so this is going to				false

		324						LN		13		15		false		          15      be a little bit boring, because we're in Clark				false

		325						LN		13		16		false		          16      County, which is an area with no terrestrial impacts				false

		326						LN		13		17		false		          17      from the project.				false

		327						LN		13		18		false		          18          So as you've heard this evening, the land-use				false

		328						LN		13		19		false		          19      consistency hearing's purpose is to determine				false

		329						LN		13		20		false		          20      whether the project is -- these are very important				false

		330						LN		13		21		false		          21      words out of the statute -- whether the project is				false

		331						LN		13		22		false		          22      consistent and in compliance with local land-use				false

		332						LN		13		23		false		          23      plans and zoning ordinances.  And EFSEC ultimately				false

		333						LN		13		24		false		          24      makes that -- ultimately makes that determination.				false

		334						LN		13		25		false		          25          So the relevant inquiry for EFSEC's initial				false

		335						PG		14		0		false		page 14				false

		336						LN		14		1		false		           1      land-use analysis is -- and I quote -- whether the				false

		337						LN		14		2		false		           2      pertinent land-use provisions prohibit the proposed				false

		338						LN		14		3		false		           3      project site, in quotes, expressly or by operation				false

		339						LN		14		4		false		           4      clearly, convincingly and unequivocally.  So fairly				false

		340						LN		14		5		false		           5      strong words that frame the discussion here.				false

		341						LN		14		6		false		           6          If a proposed project can be permitted either				false

		342						LN		14		7		false		           7      outright or conditionally, it is considered				false

		343						LN		14		8		false		           8      consistent and in compliance with local land-use				false

		344						LN		14		9		false		           9      provisions for purposes of RCW 80.50.090, Sub 2.				false

		345						LN		14		10		false		          10          So for tonight's hearing, this is, in fact, a				false

		346						LN		14		11		false		          11      very limited inquiry.  We emphasize that the Cascade				false

		347						LN		14		12		false		          12      Renewable Transmission Project proposed in Clark				false

		348						LN		14		13		false		          13      County is entirely underwater within Clark County.				false

		349						LN		14		14		false		          14      Neither the County's zoning code nor the County's				false

		350						LN		14		15		false		          15      comprehensive plan impose land-use restrictions on or				false

		351						LN		14		16		false		          16      in water uses in the river and on the river bottom				false

		352						LN		14		17		false		          17      within the Columbia River.				false

		353						LN		14		18		false		          18          We anticipate additional discussions in the				false

		354						LN		14		19		false		          19      coming days to address locations where the				false

		355						LN		14		20		false		          20      transmission line is proposed in terrestrial				false

		356						LN		14		21		false		          21      locations, but that is not being proposed tonight,				false

		357						LN		14		22		false		          22      because this is entirely in the water.				false

		358						LN		14		23		false		          23          So, sorry that that's kind of boring, but that's				false

		359						LN		14		24		false		          24      what it is at Clark County.  We'll have a lot more to				false

		360						LN		14		25		false		          25      talk about tomorrow in Skamania County.				false

		361						PG		15		0		false		page 15				false

		362						LN		15		1		false		           1          So thank you for your time.				false

		363						LN		15		2		false		           2                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you for the				false

		364						LN		15		3		false		           3      presentation.  It's helpful.				false

		365						LN		15		4		false		           4          Members of the Council, are there comments or				false

		366						LN		15		5		false		           5      questions for our presenters?				false

		367						LN		15		6		false		           6          Hearing none.				false

		368						LN		15		7		false		           7          Judge Beebe, I think I would then turn this to				false

		369						LN		15		8		false		           8      you to seek any public comment at this time.  I				false

		370						LN		15		9		false		           9      believe there was one.				false

		371						LN		15		10		false		          10                        JUDGE BEEBE:  Certainly.  And since				false

		372						LN		15		11		false		          11      I don't have the list, I'll just rely on				false

		373						LN		15		12		false		          12      Ms. Grantham, if she could call their name and ask				false

		374						LN		15		13		false		          13      them to come to the microphone.				false

		375						LN		15		14		false		          14                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Certainly will do.				false

		376						LN		15		15		false		          15          As of right now, we only have one speaker signed				false

		377						LN		15		16		false		          16      up, and that is Nathan Baker.				false

		378						LN		15		17		false		          17                        MR. BAKER:  Good evening, Chair				false

		379						LN		15		18		false		          18      Beckett, members of the Council.  My name is Nathan				false

		380						LN		15		19		false		          19      Baker.  I'm the senior staff attorney with Friends of				false

		381						LN		15		20		false		          20      the Columbia Gorge.  And I'd like to talk about three				false

		382						LN		15		21		false		          21      procedural issues tonight.  You could consider them				false

		383						LN		15		22		false		          22      objections if necessary.				false

		384						LN		15		23		false		          23          The first is that the deadline for written public				false

		385						LN		15		24		false		          24      comment is unclear at best.  There's no deadline				false

		386						LN		15		25		false		          25      stated on any of the materials for submitting written				false

		387						PG		16		0		false		page 16				false

		388						LN		16		1		false		           1      public comment.				false

		389						LN		16		2		false		           2          I did hear Chair Beckett say tonight that comment				false

		390						LN		16		3		false		           3      will be accepted throughout the process, but it isn't				false

		391						LN		16		4		false		           4      clear whether that's for land-use consistency.  If				false

		392						LN		16		5		false		           5      you look at the hearing notice, it really discourages				false

		393						LN		16		6		false		           6      written public comment.  It says, if you are unable				false

		394						LN		16		7		false		           7      to attend the hearing, then submit comments in				false

		395						LN		16		8		false		           8      writing.				false

		396						LN		16		9		false		           9          And I know that during this session, this segment				false

		397						LN		16		10		false		          10      of this hearing, you're not to be deliberating or				false

		398						LN		16		11		false		          11      responding to my points, but we would ask that				false

		399						LN		16		12		false		          12      tonight, before this hearing concludes, you keep the				false

		400						LN		16		13		false		          13      record open until a date/time and certain.  And we				false

		401						LN		16		14		false		          14      would suggest 30 days from Wednesday for that.  Keep				false

		402						LN		16		15		false		          15      the record open, and provide some clarity about when				false

		403						LN		16		16		false		          16      public comments can be submitted in writing.				false

		404						LN		16		17		false		          17          The second issue is the fact that the applicant				false

		405						LN		16		18		false		          18      has only submitted a draft application and the legal				false

		406						LN		16		19		false		          19      ramifications of that fact.  It's very clearly a				false

		407						LN		16		20		false		          20      draft application.  It's labeled as a draft on Page				false

		408						LN		16		21		false		          21      1, more than 200 times in the application.  It's in				false

		409						LN		16		22		false		          22      the footers denoted as a draft application.  It's				false

		410						LN		16		23		false		          23      described as a draft on the EFSEC website.  There's				false

		411						LN		16		24		false		          24      even internal comments in the metadata in the				false

		412						LN		16		25		false		          25      document from the land-use planners and from the				false

		413						PG		17		0		false		page 17				false

		414						LN		17		1		false		           1      applicant's attorney that are -- it's clearly still a				false

		415						LN		17		2		false		           2      draft with comments back and forth between them.				false

		416						LN		17		3		false		           3          And so what does that mean?  We think that EFSEC				false

		417						LN		17		4		false		           4      should not have accepted this and started the process				false

		418						LN		17		5		false		           5      and instead should have told the applicant, We'll				false

		419						LN		17		6		false		           6      wait until you submit a final application to start				false

		420						LN		17		7		false		           7      the process.				false

		421						LN		17		8		false		           8          But either way, there will have to be a final				false

		422						LN		17		9		false		           9      application submitted.  And there will,				false

		423						LN		17		10		false		          10      unfortunately, need to be another round of hearings				false

		424						LN		17		11		false		          11      when that -- the final application is submitted.				false

		425						LN		17		12		false		          12      That's under the statute.  Whenever an application is				false

		426						LN		17		13		false		          13      submitted, it kicks off the requirement to hold the				false

		427						LN		17		14		false		          14      hearings.				false

		428						LN		17		15		false		          15          And, finally, I've heard no mention of Clark				false

		429						LN		17		16		false		          16      County's appointee to the Council for this matter.				false

		430						LN		17		17		false		          17      That's required by the statute.  That's required --				false

		431						LN		17		18		false		          18      every hearing where the site is considered, Clark				false

		432						LN		17		19		false		          19      County is to be appointing a member of the Council.				false

		433						LN		17		20		false		          20      And we've heard no mention of that.  So all the more				false

		434						LN		17		21		false		          21      reason for another hearing, another informational				false

		435						LN		17		22		false		          22      hearing and land-use hearing, with the participation				false

		436						LN		17		23		false		          23      of Clark County's appointee for the project.				false

		437						LN		17		24		false		          24          Thank you very much.				false

		438						LN		17		25		false		          25                        JUDGE BEEBE:  Thank you.				false

		439						PG		18		0		false		page 18				false

		440						LN		18		1		false		           1                        MS. GRANTHAM:  That is the only --				false

		441						LN		18		2		false		           2                        JUDGE BEEBE:  And, Ms. Grantham --				false

		442						LN		18		3		false		           3                        MS. GRANTHAM:  -- speaker that --				false

		443						LN		18		4		false		           4      apologies.  That is the only speaker that I have				false

		444						LN		18		5		false		           5      signed up for tonight.				false

		445						LN		18		6		false		           6                        JUDGE BEEBE:  Okay.  I'm looking				false

		446						LN		18		7		false		           7      online just very quickly to see if there is any --				false

		447						LN		18		8		false		           8      looks like we have Bryan Mattson has raised his hand.				false

		448						LN		18		9		false		           9          So, Mr. Mattson, this is Judge Beebe.  I will				false

		449						LN		18		10		false		          10      give you three minutes as well, which will begin now.				false

		450						LN		18		11		false		          11      And, again, just, again, this is just public comment				false

		451						LN		18		12		false		          12      on the land-use compliance.				false

		452						LN		18		13		false		          13                        MR. MATTSON:  Thank you.  Bryan				false

		453						LN		18		14		false		          14      Mattson.  I won't need the full three minutes, so --				false

		454						LN		18		15		false		          15      but I wanted to remind the gentleman from Stoel Rives				false

		455						LN		18		16		false		          16      that Clark County still has a shoreline management				false

		456						LN		18		17		false		          17      program that's part of their zoning code.  And				false

		457						LN		18		18		false		          18      anything in the water will be considered in Clark				false

		458						LN		18		19		false		          19      County's jurisdiction if it's under the water.  It				false

		459						LN		18		20		false		          20      will be considered in the aquatic environment type.				false

		460						LN		18		21		false		          21      And the gentleman from Ecology probably has some				false

		461						LN		18		22		false		          22      insight into our shoreline management program,				false

		462						LN		18		23		false		          23      because I believe that Ecology has to approve it.				false

		463						LN		18		24		false		          24          So that's all I had.  Just wanted to make sure				false

		464						LN		18		25		false		          25      that that was included.				false

		465						PG		19		0		false		page 19				false

		466						LN		19		1		false		           1                        JUDGE BEEBE:  Thank you,				false

		467						LN		19		2		false		           2      Mr. Mattson.				false

		468						LN		19		3		false		           3          I don't see any other online hands up.				false
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           1                        BE IT REMEMBERED that on Monday,



           2      November 17, 2025, at 56 South First Street,



           3      Washougal, Washington, at 6:40 p.m., the following



           4      land-use consistency hearing of the Washington State



           5      Energy Facility Site Evaluation Council was held, to



           6      wit:



           7



           8                          <<<<<< >>>>>>



           9



          10                        CHAIR BECKETT:  So I will call this



          11      land-use consistency hearing to order.  Again, Kurt



          12      Beckett, chair of the Energy Facility Site Evaluation



          13      Council.  And this hearing is required by



          14      RCW 80.50.090(2) and the Washington Administrative



          15      Code 463-26-305.



          16          During this hearing, we will have testimony



          17      regarding the proposed project's consistency and



          18      compliance with land-use plans and zoning ordinances.



          19      That is the only subject that will be allowed during



          20      this hearing, given we've taken general comments



          21      previously.



          22          And this hearing is now very specifically in



          23      order for the Council to create the record and make a



          24      determination on land-use consistency and compliance



          25      with land-use plans and zoning ordinances.  Comments
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           1      and other topics will be asked to be directed --



           2      directing their comments online or with staff



           3      separately.



           4          So with that, I'm going to ask Ms. Grantham to



           5      call the roll again as is required.



           6                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Certainly, Chair



           7      Beckett.



           8          Department of commerce.



           9                        MS. OSBORNE:  Elizabeth Osborne,



          10      present.



          11                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Department of



          12      Ecology.



          13                        MR. NELSON:  Blake Nelson, present.



          14                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Department of Fish



          15      and Wildlife.



          16                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Nate Pamplin,



          17      present.



          18                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Department of



          19      Natural Resources.



          20                        MR. RYAN:  Maverick Ryan, present.



          21                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Utilities and



          22      Transportation Commission.



          23                        MR. RYBARIK:  Brian Rybarik,



          24      present.



          25                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Assistant Attorney
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           1      General Jon Thompson.



           2                        MR. THOMPSON:  Present.



           3                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Administrative Law



           4      Judge Courtney Beebe.



           5                        JUDGE BEEBE:  I am present.



           6                        MS. GRANTHAM:  The Council staff



           7      that are present.



           8          Sonia Bumpus.



           9                        MS. BUMPUS:  Present.



          10                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Ami Hafkemeyer.



          11                        MS. HAFKEMEYER:  Present.



          12                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Lance Caputo.



          13                        MR. CAPUTO:  Present.



          14                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Karl Holappa.



          15                        MR. HOLAPPA:  Present.



          16                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Maria Belkina.



          17                        MS. BELKINA:  Present.



          18                        MS. GRANTHAM:  And Lisa McLean.



          19                        MS. McLEAN:  Present.



          20                        MS. GRANTHAM:  And did we have



          21      anyone for the counsel for the environment show up



          22      yet?



          23          Chair, there is a quorum.



          24                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.



          25          Soon I will be asking Judge Beebe to actually
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           1      take over this portion of the meeting.  But if I may,



           2      first, Judge, let me note for the public who are



           3      still here that both the full application can be



           4      found on the EFSEC website under our "Projects"



           5      section as well as, as that process, you know,



           6      proceeds, you can always look there for supportive



           7      studies.  I know there's a question of where that



           8      might be accessed.  That may not necessarily be true



           9      today, but over the course of time, those are the



          10      materials that are present on the EFSEC website and



          11      transparent for the public's access.



          12          So, with that, let me turn this to Judge Beebe,



          13      who, again, will be taking any testimony.  It's my



          14      understanding we may not have any this evening.



          15          I should also note that we'll be conducting these



          16      hearings, both Part A and Part B, both tonight as



          17      well as tomorrow night in Skamania County and



          18      followed by the third night in Klickitat County.



          19      That is part of the underlying statute that EFSEC



          20      operates in, that after an application is received,



          21      within 60 days we would start that process in the



          22      communities in which the project will be -- will be



          23      housed.



          24          So apologies for not making that part of my



          25      earlier opening comment, but perhaps as a close.
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           1          So, with that, Judge Beebe, let me turn this to



           2      you.  And we will see if we have any further comments



           3      to be presented on land use.  Judge Beebe.



           4                        JUDGE BEEBE:  Thank you.  Just a



           5      brief introduction regarding the role of the Office



           6      of Administrative Hearings in your public meeting.



           7          The Office of Administrative Hearings is an



           8      independent agency.  My role here today is to ensure



           9      that there is a complete record of public comment.



          10      We will only be taking public comment on how the site



          11      is or is not consistent or is or is not in compliance



          12      with applicable land-use plans and zoning ordinances.



          13          Public comment is limited to three minutes per



          14      person.  We will not be allowing the asking of



          15      questions or any information exchange.  The purpose



          16      of this portion is to allow comments.  These comments



          17      may prompt a need for answers.  But the purpose of



          18      this portion of the hearing is only to allow the



          19      comments and to create the record.



          20          Following this land-use consistency hearing, I



          21      shall draft an order, including findings of fact,



          22      appropriate portions of relevant law and code,



          23      proposed conclusions of law regarding whether the



          24      proposed site is consistent and in compliance with



          25      applicable land-use plans and zoning ordinances.
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           1          For the record, the applicable law is



           2      RCW 80.50.090, Subsection 2, and Washington



           3      Administrative Code Chapter 463-26.  I shall provide



           4      a draft order to the EFSEC assigned AAG and staff for



           5      any revisions and review prior to them proposing



           6      order to the Council with a recommendation.



           7          So, with that, if there is a first person on the



           8      list, I'll defer to you, Ms. Grantham, regarding



           9      calling the person to speak.



          10                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Thank you.



          11          I would like to direct that the applicant



          12      actually has a presentation for the land-use



          13      consistency hearing first.



          14                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Apologies for



          15      missing that piece, so...



          16                        JUDGE BEEBE:  If the applicant



          17      would like to begin with their presentation, and then



          18      we can begin with public comment.



          19                        MS. BASSETT:  All right.  Hi,



          20      everyone.  I'm Malia Bassett.  I'm a senior



          21      environmental planner, and I'm on the CRT team.  And



          22      I'm going to talk about land-use consistency in Clark



          23      County.



          24          Let's go ahead and go to the next slide.



          25          So, Chris, do you want to give just a quick
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           1      overview again, if folks weren't here?



           2                        MR. HOCKER:  Yeah.



           3          This is basically a repeat of my previous



           4      presentation.  But the project, of course, is about a



           5      hundred miles underwater and underground.  It's -- 80



           6      of that is in the river.  The green line up at the



           7      top.  The land portions include about five miles in



           8      the Portland area, about five miles in The Dalles



           9      area, and about seven and a half miles to bypass the



          10      Bonneville Dam.  And that's what the yellow lines



          11      are.  Those are the buried underground portions.



          12                        MS. BASSETT:  So as you can see in



          13      the center there, the on-land portion starts



          14      around -- comes out of the Columbia River and goes on



          15      land in Stevenson and then goes west and then goes



          16      back into the Columbia River after the Bonneville



          17      Dam.



          18          So -- next slide, please -- there actually isn't



          19      any on -- next slide -- on-land portions in Clark



          20      County, but I will be going through the in-water



          21      portions that are in the Columbia River adjacent to



          22      Clark County.



          23          So there are seven.  We're referring to them as



          24      segments.  That's because the center of the Columbia



          25      River is the border between Washington State and
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           1      Oregon State, and the line maneuvers in and out of



           2      the state.  So there's seven segments of the line



           3      that come into Washington and then exit between the



           4      boundaries of Clark County.



           5          And that's about eight miles total.  So going to



           6      walk through those so you can see where the line



           7      enters Washington, exits, so those seven segments.



           8          Next slide please.



           9          So the yellow highlight is highlighting the line



          10      which is represented with a -- with the red dashes.



          11      You can see that around River Mile 177, the line just



          12      barely crosses over to Washington and then exits back



          13      into Oregon.  Same thing you're seeing as we go down



          14      the river.  117?  Oh.  Yeah, I can barely see that.



          15      Sorry.  117 river mile and then going east to River



          16      Mile 121.  So we have three segments -- right? --



          17      that we're looking at where the line enters and exits



          18      Washington State.



          19          Next slide.



          20          Same thing here.  There's a little carryover from



          21      the previous slide at River Mile 121 and then



          22      three -- well, two full segments coming in and out of



          23      Washington State and then one back in Washington



          24      State at 124 and a half.  And then -- next slide.



          25          Then there's the continuation of the segment in
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           1      the last slide around 125 to almost 127.  And then



           2      you see the last segment there between 127 and 129.



           3          And just to reiterate, these are the components



           4      on-land in Washington.  Clark County is not listed



           5      there, so there's actually no on-land components.



           6      There's only in-water.  And like it was said



           7      previously, we will be discussing the on-land



           8      components tomorrow and Wednesday.  For now, that's



           9      it for Clark County.



          10          Tim, did you want to say anything about



          11      consistency?



          12                        MR. McMAHAN:  Tim McMahan here.  I



          13      represent the applicant, and I'm a lawyer with Stoel



          14      Rives law firm in Portland.  And so this is going to



          15      be a little bit boring, because we're in Clark



          16      County, which is an area with no terrestrial impacts



          17      from the project.



          18          So as you've heard this evening, the land-use



          19      consistency hearing's purpose is to determine



          20      whether the project is -- these are very important



          21      words out of the statute -- whether the project is



          22      consistent and in compliance with local land-use



          23      plans and zoning ordinances.  And EFSEC ultimately



          24      makes that -- ultimately makes that determination.



          25          So the relevant inquiry for EFSEC's initial
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           1      land-use analysis is -- and I quote -- whether the



           2      pertinent land-use provisions prohibit the proposed



           3      project site, in quotes, expressly or by operation



           4      clearly, convincingly and unequivocally.  So fairly



           5      strong words that frame the discussion here.



           6          If a proposed project can be permitted either



           7      outright or conditionally, it is considered



           8      consistent and in compliance with local land-use



           9      provisions for purposes of RCW 80.50.090, Sub 2.



          10          So for tonight's hearing, this is, in fact, a



          11      very limited inquiry.  We emphasize that the Cascade



          12      Renewable Transmission Project proposed in Clark



          13      County is entirely underwater within Clark County.



          14      Neither the County's zoning code nor the County's



          15      comprehensive plan impose land-use restrictions on or



          16      in water uses in the river and on the river bottom



          17      within the Columbia River.



          18          We anticipate additional discussions in the



          19      coming days to address locations where the



          20      transmission line is proposed in terrestrial



          21      locations, but that is not being proposed tonight,



          22      because this is entirely in the water.



          23          So, sorry that that's kind of boring, but that's



          24      what it is at Clark County.  We'll have a lot more to



          25      talk about tomorrow in Skamania County.
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           1          So thank you for your time.



           2                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you for the



           3      presentation.  It's helpful.



           4          Members of the Council, are there comments or



           5      questions for our presenters?



           6          Hearing none.



           7          Judge Beebe, I think I would then turn this to



           8      you to seek any public comment at this time.  I



           9      believe there was one.



          10                        JUDGE BEEBE:  Certainly.  And since



          11      I don't have the list, I'll just rely on



          12      Ms. Grantham, if she could call their name and ask



          13      them to come to the microphone.



          14                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Certainly will do.



          15          As of right now, we only have one speaker signed



          16      up, and that is Nathan Baker.



          17                        MR. BAKER:  Good evening, Chair



          18      Beckett, members of the Council.  My name is Nathan



          19      Baker.  I'm the senior staff attorney with Friends of



          20      the Columbia Gorge.  And I'd like to talk about three



          21      procedural issues tonight.  You could consider them



          22      objections if necessary.



          23          The first is that the deadline for written public



          24      comment is unclear at best.  There's no deadline



          25      stated on any of the materials for submitting written
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           1      public comment.



           2          I did hear Chair Beckett say tonight that comment



           3      will be accepted throughout the process, but it isn't



           4      clear whether that's for land-use consistency.  If



           5      you look at the hearing notice, it really discourages



           6      written public comment.  It says, if you are unable



           7      to attend the hearing, then submit comments in



           8      writing.



           9          And I know that during this session, this segment



          10      of this hearing, you're not to be deliberating or



          11      responding to my points, but we would ask that



          12      tonight, before this hearing concludes, you keep the



          13      record open until a date/time and certain.  And we



          14      would suggest 30 days from Wednesday for that.  Keep



          15      the record open, and provide some clarity about when



          16      public comments can be submitted in writing.



          17          The second issue is the fact that the applicant



          18      has only submitted a draft application and the legal



          19      ramifications of that fact.  It's very clearly a



          20      draft application.  It's labeled as a draft on Page



          21      1, more than 200 times in the application.  It's in



          22      the footers denoted as a draft application.  It's



          23      described as a draft on the EFSEC website.  There's



          24      even internal comments in the metadata in the



          25      document from the land-use planners and from the
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           1      applicant's attorney that are -- it's clearly still a



           2      draft with comments back and forth between them.



           3          And so what does that mean?  We think that EFSEC



           4      should not have accepted this and started the process



           5      and instead should have told the applicant, We'll



           6      wait until you submit a final application to start



           7      the process.



           8          But either way, there will have to be a final



           9      application submitted.  And there will,



          10      unfortunately, need to be another round of hearings



          11      when that -- the final application is submitted.



          12      That's under the statute.  Whenever an application is



          13      submitted, it kicks off the requirement to hold the



          14      hearings.



          15          And, finally, I've heard no mention of Clark



          16      County's appointee to the Council for this matter.



          17      That's required by the statute.  That's required --



          18      every hearing where the site is considered, Clark



          19      County is to be appointing a member of the Council.



          20      And we've heard no mention of that.  So all the more



          21      reason for another hearing, another informational



          22      hearing and land-use hearing, with the participation



          23      of Clark County's appointee for the project.



          24          Thank you very much.



          25                        JUDGE BEEBE:  Thank you.
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           1                        MS. GRANTHAM:  That is the only --



           2                        JUDGE BEEBE:  And, Ms. Grantham --



           3                        MS. GRANTHAM:  -- speaker that --



           4      apologies.  That is the only speaker that I have



           5      signed up for tonight.



           6                        JUDGE BEEBE:  Okay.  I'm looking



           7      online just very quickly to see if there is any --



           8      looks like we have Bryan Mattson has raised his hand.



           9          So, Mr. Mattson, this is Judge Beebe.  I will



          10      give you three minutes as well, which will begin now.



          11      And, again, just, again, this is just public comment



          12      on the land-use compliance.



          13                        MR. MATTSON:  Thank you.  Bryan



          14      Mattson.  I won't need the full three minutes, so --



          15      but I wanted to remind the gentleman from Stoel Rives



          16      that Clark County still has a shoreline management



          17      program that's part of their zoning code.  And



          18      anything in the water will be considered in Clark



          19      County's jurisdiction if it's under the water.  It



          20      will be considered in the aquatic environment type.



          21      And the gentleman from Ecology probably has some



          22      insight into our shoreline management program,



          23      because I believe that Ecology has to approve it.



          24          So that's all I had.  Just wanted to make sure



          25      that that was included.
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           1                        JUDGE BEEBE:  Thank you,



           2      Mr. Mattson.



           3          I don't see any other online hands up.



           4          Any other on -- individuals who are attending



           5      online, if you want to use the hand-raise feature.



           6          Okay.  I don't see any individuals online.  And



           7      no others have signed up.  So I will defer to you,



           8      Chairperson Beckett, if you want to inquire further



           9      of additional public testimony.



          10                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you, Judge



          11      Beebe.  Let me do one final call on land-use



          12      questions from those in attendance here in person



          13      tonight.



          14          And seeing none, Judge.  I'm going to close the



          15      meeting -- or the hearing here in just a moment, but



          16      let me double-check if there's any other closing



          17      business that you had.



          18                        JUDGE BEEBE:  I will defer to you



          19      and to your legal counsel regarding the request to



          20      keep the record open.  I would simply note that as it



          21      would depend -- it would impact the timeline for me



          22      drafting an order to propose to the Council.



          23                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Appreciate that



          24      clarification.



          25          I don't think we'll be in the position to do that
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           1      here live in the hearing tonight, but certainly



           2      appreciate the input and the questions and certainly



           3      on the public comment period.  I'm sure we will have



           4      that answered this week.



           5          So, with that, let me thank everyone who has



           6      taken their time to participate this evening, whether



           7      in listen-only mode or more active participation.  We



           8      certainly appreciate you helping us begin this



           9      process.



          10          And let me check with our Council members to see



          11      if there's any closing questions or comments.



          12          And I believe Director Bumpus may have a couple



          13      items to add in, which is welcome.  Director Bumpus.



          14                        MS. BUMPUS:  Thank you, Chair



          15      Beckett.



          16          I just wanted to note for the record just to



          17      clarify that, on the EFSEC website, for our hearing,



          18      specifically the informational hearing and the



          19      land-use hearing this evening for Clark County, the



          20      comment period shows it starts at 5:30 p.m., which



          21      was the timing that we started this meeting, and ends



          22      at 11:59 p.m.



          23          So our online comment system -- even though we



          24      will be concluding this hearing tonight, the comment



          25      system will be available online until 11:59 tonight.
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           1                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you for the



           2      additional clarification.



           3          And, with that, we are then adjourned at



           4      7:01 p.m.  Thank you very much.



           5                               (Hearing adjourned at



           6                                7:01 p.m.)
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             2      County of Pierce    )     in the State of Washington, do
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             5      Washington State Energy Facility Site Evaluation Council was
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             6      and thereafter was transcribed under my direction; that the

                    transcript is a full, true and complete transcript of the

             7      said hearing, transcribed to the best of my ability;



             8           That I am not a relative, employee, attorney or counsel

                    of any party to this matter or relative or employee of any

             9      such attorney or counsel and that I am not financially
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